
Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes 9/16/2014

Planning & Zoning Commission

Regular Meeting Minutes
Tuesday. September 16, 2014

7:30 PM
Oxford Town Hall

Main Meeting Room

( AlA. To ORDER

Chairman Carer called the Regular Meeting ol September 16. 2014 to order at 7:51) PM.

P1 £I)G F OF ALLEGIANCE

ROil (IJ.

Present. £\lternate John Kerwin. Alternate Pete Zhras, Arnie Jensen. Jeff Luff. Tanya
Car\er and Pat (occhiarella.

Staff Present: Je s’ica Pennell, Administratixe Secretar\ and Brian Miller. Town Planner.
bsent: Harold Cosgrove. Ed Rowland, Glen Persson and Todd Romagna.

;X1•:(i Tl i: SESSION

MOTION BY Commission Secretary Cocchiarella to enter into E\ecuti\ e Session to discuss
Plicics and l>roccdures and the Hiring of the Zoning Enforcement Officer at 7:51) PM.
Seond by 1ternate Pete Zbras,
NOTE: UI Ayes,

lh. following people were in i’tted into Executive Session:

\ltrnatc J hn Ker in. Alternate Pete Zhra. Arnie Jensen. Jeff Lull. Tans a Cars er and Pat
( occhi irella

Personnel I)I\cussion rcgardmg Commissions Policies and Guidelines and Hiring Zoning
I nforcemc il Officer.

IOiiON BY Commission Secretary Coechiarella to come out of Executixe Se\sion at S:05
P\l.
Second b lternate Pete Zbras,
\ OTE: All Aes.

( IIAIRNIATVS REPORT

TOWN OF OXFORI)
S.B, Church Memorial Town hail

4X6 Oxford Road. Oxford. Connecticut 0647S-l29
www.Oxford-CT.gov

I



Planning & Zoning Regulat Meeting Minutes 9/16/2014

SEATiNG OF ALTERNATES

(hairnian Carver seated Alternate John Kerwin and Alternate Pete Zbras.

AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS (Not for Pending Applications)

Bill Trzyna of 139 Country Club Drive began speaking regarding the Bond Releases on the
a enda for Pulte Flumes.

(iiairnian Carer stated that he could speak under the item on the agenda: she noted that the
Audience of Citizens is not for items already listed on the agenda for discussion

IENI)\IENTS TO AGENDA

I MOTION BY Commission Secretar Coechiarella to AMEND the agenda to add
Z-13-085 [1NDI — Owner & Applicant: B. lnited International A(Idress: 7 to
Hollow Road (Map: 28 Block: 18 Lot: 4-4A) (28’ x 20’ Addition) (Use Permit.)
(Relocate existing parking) (Special Exception: Article 9. Section 93.7 & 9.3.20
a’. Ne l3u’.iness #3.
Second by Alternate John Kerin.
VOTE: All Ayes.

(ORRESPONI)ENCE

(ornmission Secretary Cocchiarella read the follo mg corre.pondence into the record.

a ) Letter dated 9/4/2014 from Chairman Carver to George Temple, First Selectman
RE: Teniporar Part—time Planning & Zoning Clerk

0 > Lcttei dated September 5. 2014 from the Connecticut Siting Council
RE: PETITION NO. 1058. (See letter).

) Letter dated 9/3/2014 from James W. Walsh to Anna Rycenga. ZEO
RE: Beth Acres Suhdiision 4Z-13—005) Performance Bond

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN ON ANY CORRESPONDENCE.

OIL) BLSINESS

\E BUSINESS

I ) Z- 14-005 — Owner: Brian Botti. Beth Acres Subdivision” Riggs Street & Autumn
Ridge Road Rcque’.t to AuthorlLe Chairman and Secretar\ to sign ms lar for filing)

Commission Secretary (‘occhiarella read the follow ing correspondence into the record:

a Letter dated 9/3/21)14 from Michael H 1—lorhal.

Commission Secretary Cocchiarella noted the following items were on file:

0 Copy of La’.ement for Drl\ eway , [tilities and Drainage.



Planning & /oning Regular Meeting Minutes - 9/16/2014

\IOTION BY Vice Chairman Luff to AUTHORIZE the Chairman and Secretary to sign the
mylar
Second h Alternate John Kerw ill.

Ol’l:: All Axes.

Chairman Carer and Commission Secretary Cocchiarella signed the rn>lar for “Beth Acres’

2. L-14-091 ICOMMI — Ovner: Vicki Frenzel, Applicant: (1. Nevers Carpentry, LLC
8 Bice 1)rie (Site Plan Modification — Addition. Breeieway and Relocation of Existing
Garagc (ACCEPTAS COMPLETE) (FOR BARD TO TOW.V FE.IIA
(OORI)L\1 TO!?)

icki Fren,el, Applicant & Owner of Pure Platinum was present along ith her
( ontractor, George Nevers. She e\plained that she knows that the Commi.sion cannot approve
this tonight because they still need approval Inland/Wetlands. She commented that she was
hoping that the Commission could preiew the application and see if there is anything that needs
to he changed.

Vice Chairman Luff questioned the location of Bice Dri’e.

icki Freuzel. Applicant e\ptained the location.

( ommission Secretary Cocchiarella stated that for full disclosure, he does get his haircut at
Pu e Pltmnm.

( hairman (‘arer stated that this is a non—conforming lot.

(onliuissioll Secretary Uocchiarella read an e—mail dated WI 6/2014 from the applicants
\tton1e I)om nick Thomas.

Chairman Cars er asked. for clarification, if the applicant is expanding an e\isling building that
is iuoiuon formine. and theretore making it more non—conforming.

\‘icki Frentel, Applicant stated that she is not changing the apartment.

(ommission Secretary Cocchiarella esplained that the non—conforming part is the apartment,

icki I’ren,el, pplicant. stated that she is changing the conforming part. just adding more
pacc [or the sa k n.

Vice ( hairman Luff questioned ii’ there is a garage on the property also.

‘ icki Freniel, Applicant. stated that it is not a garage. it is actualk a shed and it does not hake a
f undation. She stated that they are proposing mno irig the existing shed.

‘ ice Chairman Luff cltiesiiolmed it it as one story,

Vkki Fren,eI, pplicant, answered that it is one story with a loft.

Uternite John Ker4 in asked if the parking lot is existing.

3



Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes— Wl6/2014

icki Frenzel, Applicant stated that all that would stay the same.

\lternate John Kerin asked how man bass Ms. Frenzel has for customers.

Vicki Frcnzel, Applicant stated six.

Alternate John Kerwin questioned the applicant if she plans to expand.

Vicki Freozel, Applicant stated that they can only have six because that is what the department
of health sa s for w ater reasons, She stated that if she meters her eli she can add more stations
as time goes h.

The Commission explained that if the applicant wants to increase her stations, she Wouki have to
come hack before the Commission.

Chairman Carver stated that her only concern is that there is a non—conforming use, and she has
to check and see what if the applicant is proposing, will make the lot more non-conforming. She
stated that this \ ould have to he researched.

Commission Secretary Cocchiarella stated the ZBA has already done the variance,

Alternate John Kerwin stated that when you get the ZBA approval, it means that you have
approval for the existing use, hut that doesn’t mean that you can expand the business.

Commission Secretary Cocchiarella commented that it is in a commercial zone, so the
commercial part, it is an allowed use. He stated that the apartment is the non-conforming use and
there are no changes being made to the apartment.

Alternate John Kerwin questioned it’ she has the ZBA approval just for the apartment.

Vice Chairman Luff answered that she has ZBA approval for the apartment in the commercial
/ C) ic’

Commission Secretary Cocchiarella noted that the apartment was approved in 1980.

The (‘ommission noted that this application has been for\\arded to the Town FEMA
Coordinator for review because it is located in a Flood Plain and needs to obtain a Flood Hazard
Permit and they also forwarded this to Town Planner, Brian Miller for review.

3) Ai)LWl) AS AMEM)MENT:

Z-14-085 JIND] — Owner & Applicant: B. t:nited lnternatioiial A(l(lreSS 7 Fox
hollow Road (Map: 28 Block: 18 Lot: -l-4A) t28’ x 20’ Addition) (Lse Permit)
(Relocate existing parking) (Special Exception: Article 9, Section 9,3,7 & 9,3,20)

MO’I’ION BY Commission Secretary Cocchiarella to ,IPPROVE Z-14-085 based on
Maps dated August 14. 2014 with the following conditions:

) Compliance with the Oxford Zoning Regulations in place as of this date.
2 Applicant and their assigns must comply with all representations made at P&Z

Commission meetings or at Public Hearings regarding this application.

4



Planning & /onmg Regular Meeting Minutes 9/16/2014

3) Prior to installation, all lighting must he approved by the ZEO,
4 Landscaping plan and architectural rendering nnist be as presented on the site

plan. An variations must he approved by the P&Z Commission.
5) No work to begin until security is set, if determined necessary by the P&Z

hngineer, and in a form acceptable to the P&Z Counsel.
6> No material will be substituted w ithout approval lrorn the P&Z Commission and

the P&Z Engineer.
7) Per Article 3. Section 3.19.1 of the Zoning Regulations, the applicant shall he

responsible br rendering pay merit for any outside experts the Commission
assigns to review this application from the initial review through inspection and
issuance of a Zoning Certificate of Compliance.

S ‘i Site Plan appro al expires if the work is not completed w ithin 5 ‘ ears from the
date of approval.

0) Compliance with all Town of Oxford Ordinance’s in effect as of this date.
I 0> \ chicle directional signs stating entrance or exist shall he c learl marked and

oh no advertisement.
11) Applicant to contact P&Z Staff to set up a pre-construction meeting prior to any

actisit\ on the site.
12> (ompliance with the requirements of the Pomperaug Department District of

I lealth.
I Suhmission of 3 copies of revised maps.

Reason br approxal is that it meets the Oxford Zoning Regulations in effect as of this
date mel uding the required findings for approval of a Special Exception as per Article 10,
Section IbIS.

Setond h3 Vice Chairman Luff.
OfE: All Ayes.

BOM) REEL SES

Oxford Greens — Pulte homes Phase III — Suret Bond # 8195—39—38 — Performance
Bond (Request for Bond Releasel

MOTIO\ BY Commission Secretary Cocchiarella to REMOVE this item from the table.
Second by lternate Pete Zhras.
() FL: ll es.

Commission Secretary Cocchiarella read the following letter into the record.

a, Letter dated 0/9/2014 from Jim Galligan. Town Engineer.

Jessica Pennell, Administrative Secretary explained to the Commission that the letter from Jim
allian addresses both Items #1 & #2 under Bond Releases.

ice (‘hairman Luff questioned if the Homeow ncr’s Association agrees with Nafis & Young’s

Bill Trzyna, 139 Country Club 1)rive stated that he is a member 0f the Board of Directors of the
O’dord Greens homeowner’s Association (Phases I, II and Ill). He commented that he is here to
k that tire (‘oinmission does not release the Performance Bond in regard to the roads. I-Ic stated



Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes 9/16/21)14

thL reason (1) because of the letter that Commission Secretary Qocchiarella just read from Jim
( alligan, and (2) because he has additional information and photos to show to the Commission to
reinfoice \ hat the h)\ n Engineer has alreath said in his letter. He noted that the engineer
pointed out that it ‘.\ as poor quaIit and that apparently the performance of the workmanship in
paving the roads was ‘very poorly done. He submitted photos to the Commission. He explained
that the Homeow ncr’s Association has alread\ had to have a contractor come in and redo a part ot
Pulunc Green Lane because it was dangerous to the residents of Oxford Greens. lie submitted a
repom I ft om Grecnw ay, the company that repaired the road. He explained that the Flomeow ncr’s
\ssoeiation has learned from having to repair roads from Phase I and Phase II that the developer
should ‘upport the Association and help them to repair the roads before the Performance bond is
released.

( hairman (arver requested Mr. Triyna to dale the pictures that he has submitted to the
(‘ nnmisi n.

(‘ontnlission Secretary Cocchiardlla read correspondence submitted by Mr. Tn> na.

‘ ice ( hairman Luff questioned the name of the developer of the project.

Mr. Friy na stated that it is Puke.

‘ ice Chairman Luff asked if the Homeow ncr’s Association has confronted the developer.

Mi na stated that ihe\ had and thc LIC\ eloper helie es it is the responsibilit of the
I lonier w ncr’ \ssociai ion to fix the roads.

\ ice (‘hal rinan I uff asked how long these roads have been complete.

1r Tri na stated that it w as none in 2010 or 201!

( om mission Secretary (‘occhiarella questioned when the Homeow ncr’ s Association accepted
I hese roads.

Mr. Ft ,yna stated that he does not know.

( ‘onimnission Sccretar Cocchiarella stated that in the past before the Flomeow ncr’s Association
a. ptn..d the roads; there was a punch list of items that had to be completed before the road was
turned wea to the Homeow ncr’s Association. He commented that the Tow n holds the bond for
non-.eoinplct ion so he isn’t sure if the bond and this issue are related, or if this becomes a ci i
issue.

Mr. [r,i na \tated that the term is performance bond. so if the> didn’t perform. isn’t that what
this bond Is for’

( ommassion Secretary (‘occhiarella stated that the engineers were out there prior to the
I lomeow ncr’s \ssociation accepting these roads, it was engineering that was done as the roads
weae kane built,

Altei’nate ,John Kerw in stated that the purpose of a performance bond is different than the
w arrant that is made to the Homeow ncr’s ,\ssoc iation. He commented that he does not thi ii k
<Ii it it is the (‘ommission’s position to render an opinion on that, which would hase to be done by

6



Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes 9/16/2014

I own ( oun sel lie commented that the Town has an obligation to release the bond under the
erms of the bond and the conditions that were placed on the developer.

Ir, [nina stated that he would like to have a better explanation of what a Performance Bond is.
h , ause in his mind, based on what the engineer stated and the photos, the developer did not
per rm.

(‘hairman Carver coniiuented that the Commission will forward this to fown Counsel for an
0)1110 1

( omniission Secretary Coechiarella asked that Tow n Counsel also gi e a proper definition of a
pet tormance bond.

Alternate .John Kerwin also suggested w ith an emphasis on the effect of the Ilomeow ncr’s
acceptance of the proper1 under the terms of their contract.

ice Chairman Luff explained that the Commi%sion is going to talk to the ‘[own ;\ttorne he is
come to look into the definition of a performance bond, and the Commission w ill find out if there
is am t ung that they can do to assist the Homeowner’s Association. He commented that if there
s iiothni the Commission can do based upon the Town Attorney’s opinion, then it w ill be
hi’i ecu the Flumeow ncr’ Association and Puke.

Mr. l’riyna questioned if they were to seek legal counsel would they be able to us the
mit inai am in i he Tow n Engineer’s letter,

Chairman Carver stated that it is a public document.

‘IOTlON BY Commission Secretary (‘occhiarella to T4BLE Items #1 and 2 tinder Bond
Reea\e’, until they hear hack from Town Counsel.
Second b Alternate Pete Zbras.
\OIE: All Aics.

Oxford Greens — Pulte homes Phase II & 111 - Letter of Credit # l)BS — 18769 — Soil
& Erosion Bond (Request for Bond Release) (REMOVE FROM TIlE T1BLE)

Letter dated 0/0/2014 from J mi Gall igan, Town Engineer

Randal l)rive — Susan Kopec Jiitcawitz (Request for release of Maintenance l3ond t
T I BLEI) (Refrrred to Town Engineer,)

iA)’lM [:NFoRCEMET

(oniinission Secretary Cocehiarella read the following correspondence trom the ZEO into the
Ce )Fd.

I ener dated 0/4/2014 from Anna Rycenga. ZEO to Jim Hli\ a, Finance Director
RE: 49 Oakcrest Road (E&S Bond Posted)

2. letter dated 9/4/2014 from Anna Rycenga. ZEO to Jim Hliva. Finance Director
RE; Lakeside Estates, Fiddlehead Road (E&S and Law ii Bond Posted)



Planning & Zoning Regular Meetmg Minutes 9/16/2014

&PPRO U. OF MINU [ES

I N lay 6 2014 Public Hearing Minutes — Garden Homes

2 \ugul 19. 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes

MO liON BY Commission Secretary Cocchiarella to APPROVE hems #1 and #2 under
apprk)\al ol minutes.
Second b3 Alternate Pete Zbras.
N OfE: All Ayes.

1W OWES

in oicc dated 9/1i2014 from Micci & Korol shun. P C for Garden Homes -\ppeal.

NIO lION BY Commission Secretary Cocchiarella to FORWARD the 1noice dated 9/1/2014
Ii em NI icci & Km o1y shun to the Board of Selectmen for pa ment.
Second b N ice (iiairtuan Luff.
NOTE: &11 Ayes.

2 > In Voice if 242-14 from Nat is & Young Engineers.

I() [ION BY Commission Secretar (‘occhiarella to APPROVE PA Y11ENT of ln\oice ff
2 4’ I 4 ii 0tH Nalis & ‘bong.
Second b Vice Chairman Luff,
\ OTF.: UI A.es.

ln iu #258-14 from Nafis & Young Engmeers.

MO [ION BY Commission Secretar3 Cocchiarella toAPPROVE PAYMENT of Inoice #
14 1mm Nat is & Young.

Secon(I b N ice Chairman Luff.
N OTI’ Ut es.

i[Il[ R BL SINESS

Any #1 em business the Commission deems necessary for diseussion,

(‘hai rman (‘ar er stated that t he woii I d like to make a recommendation to .1 tin Hi m’ a to get a
crelary 1mm Branford to help to complete the minutes. She asked that a letter he sent to Jim

1 lb a \ ith this u’quest

MOTION BY Vice Chairman Luff to ha”.e Jim Hli’.a APPROVE their request br transci iptmon
i \ ft Cs

Second t) lternate Pete Zbras,
NOTE: Ul ves,

Chairman Cars yr stated that the Commission ould also like to inetease the hotu ly rate br
N it is & N’ oung to be consistent with the To n Planner (‘85.00 per hour) for work performed that

bl led to •ippl cants. It ‘.‘. as stated that to n business ‘. ould still he done at the rate of ‘s60 00
pi hoi r



Planning & /onmg ReguLir Meeting !linutes )l 6/2014

r1() [ION BY ‘ ice Chairman Luff to ha\e a letter sent to Jim Hlixa regarding the hourI
increase wquest for the lo 11 Engineer for ork that is hilled to applicants.
Second b Alternate Pete Zbras.
NOTE: Ml \es.

lternate Pete Zbras explained that he sas approached regarding the Oxford fown Center and a
dust loud lie stated that the resident had tried numerous times to contact To ii Hall and v. as
unable to reach anyone. He explained that he also tried to reach To n Hall and he could not get
in touc h ith anyone either. He stated that he called Tan\ a and she took care of it.

Chairman Carver e\plalned that she contacted Haynes and was replied to quickly. She stated
that s hat happened ‘x as addressed to her in an e—mail.

( mnmission Secretary (occhiarelia stated that there was a pocket of loose sand that created
this dust cloud ‘. hen the did a hlast. it is not a common occurrence.

P( OM I NG EVENTS/MEETINGS:

October 7 2014 Public hearings;

7:00 P’l 1-14-088 — Brian & [ouise Knies, 29 Fiddlehead Road (SpeLhil IAepinn)
I )etiehed Can iage Heuse)

7:05 PM Proposed Moratorium on Medicinal Marijuana l)ispensaries

RNNllNT

lOTlO Conimission Secretary Cocchiarella to AI)JOlRN the meeting.
Second b &lternate Pete Zhras.
\ () [F: All A’es.

Lspcthill’ submitted.

1ca k’uneil
in sti nO Sccretar\

Plannuig & / uiing Commission

9


